SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
ANCHORAGE LEGQ SLATI VE | NFORMATI ON OFFI CE
Sept enber 29, 2016
2:40 p. m

[ Note: The follow ng neeting convened in the Anchorage
Legislative Information Ofice and was tel econferenced and
recorded in Juneau. ]

2:40: 35 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 2:40 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Jerry Burnett, Deputy Comm ssioner, Treasury Division,

Departnent of Revenue; Deven Mtchell, Executive D rector,
Al aska  Muni ci pal Bond Bank Authority, Department  of
Revenue; St eve Kant or , Fi nanci al Advi sor, Hlltop
Securities; Randall Hoffbeck, Comm ssioner, Departnent of

Revenue; Steve Kantor, Financial Advisor, First Southwest;
Fi nancial Advisor, Pension bligation Bond Corporation;
Mark Foster, Fiscal Study G oup Menber, Commonweal th Nort h;
Representati ve St eve Thonpson; Representati ve M ke
Chenaul t; Representative Dan Saddler; Representative Liz
Vasquez.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE




St ephen Gaut hier, Government Finance Oficers Association;
Representati ve Sam Ki t o.

SUMVARY

DI SCUSSI ON OF PENSI ON OBLI GATI ON BONDS

Co-Chair Kelly relayed that the adm nistration had proposed
i ssuing pension obligation bonds, and the commttee was

gathered to consider the idea.

ADI SCUSSI ON OF PENSI ON OBLI GATI ON BONDS

2:42: 52 PM

JERRY BURNETT, DEPUTY COW SSIONER, TREASURY DI VI SI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, relayed that he was acting in the
role of Designated Chair of the Al aska Pension bligation
Bond Corporation (APOBC). He stated that the POBC had net
the previous Mnday to approve the issuance of up to $3.5

billion worth of pension obligation bonds and del egated the
responsibilities for doing the transactions to the staff.
He added that staff included Devin Mtchell, Executive

Director, Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority, Departnent
of Revenue; and the officers of the APOBC, which included
hi msel f and the comm ssioner of the Departnent of Revenue
(DOR). He added that Conm ssioner Randall Hoffbeck was
attendi ng anot her neeting and would be present later in the
neeti ng.

M. Burnett stated that he would go through the reasons why
the state should do a pension obligation bond, how the
adm nistration would protect and state and the pension
system from the problens that had been raised by the
Government Finance Oficers Association (GFQOA). The GFOA
had stated in its advisory bulletin that |ocal governnents
and states should not do pension obligation bonds.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if there was anyone online. He
noted that Representative Kito was online. He asked for a
list of nmenmbers of the APOBC.

M. Burnett replied that statute defined the nenbers of
APOCBC as the comm ssioners of DOR, the Departnent of
Adm ni stration, and the Departnent of Conmmerce, Community
and Econom c Devel opnent. He continued that in each case,
the comm ssioners (if not available) had delegated the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



authority to a deputy conm ssioner to include: hinself,
John Boucher, Senior Econonmist, Ofice of Mnagenent and
Budget, Ofice of the Governor; and Fred Parady, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Depart ment of Conmmer ce, Communi ty, and
Econom c Devel opnent. He expl ained that the corporation was
established through Ilegislation in 2008 (sponsored by
Representative M ke Hawker), at which tinme up to $5 billion
in bonds was authorized for issuance.

Co-Chair Kelly asked about the year the legislation was
passed. M. Burnett replied that it was in 2008.

2:46:40 PM

DEVEN M TCHELL, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MJN Cl PAL BOND
BANK AUTHORI TY, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, explained that he
woul d provide sone background as to why the state had
unfunded liabilities and why pension obligation bonds were
bei ng discussed. He explained that the state nanaged a
nunber of retirenment systens, the two |argest of which were
the Public Enployees' Retirenent System (PERS), and the
Teachers' Retirenent System (TRS). He continued that the
retirement prograns had three separate tiers, which were
defined benefit progranms. He remarked that there was now a
retirement programin place that was a defined contribution
program He stressed that there were still enployees in the
first three tiers that were guaranteed by the constitution
and that the system was intended to be prefunded. He
remarked that the benefits were estinmated through an
actuarial analysis in the late 1990s to be fully funded. He
stressed that the actuarial analysis was incorrect (after
using outdated nortality tables), resulting in an unfunded
actuarial liability. He shared that the unfunded liability
was currently $6 billion, which would pay up to $20 billion
of future benefits, due to an 8 percent return assunption
in the pension systemis actuarial analysis. He remarked
that it was critical to look at the future paynments, wth
the exception of the $6 billion, as growing at 8 percent
per year.

Senator Dunleavy asked if M. Mtchell was discussing both
TRS and PERS.

M. Mtchell answered in the affirmati ve.

2:50:18 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



Co- Chair MacKinnon asked if the funding being discussed
i ncl uded heal t hcare.

M. Mtchell answered in the affirmative. He furthered that
the Oher Postenploynent Benefits (OPEB) piece of the
retirement system (after deposits in 2015) was near 100
percent funded in PERS, and were slightly over 100 percent
funded in TRS as of the |ast approved actuarial analysis.
[ Secretaries note: OPEB are benefits (other than pensions)
that U S. state and |ocal governnents provide to their
retired enployees]. He explained that the trust was split
apart into four pieces, two in TRS and two in PERS, wth
one for pension and one for OPEB

Co-Chair MacKinnon referred to a footnote by a credit

rating agency that indicated the state was $12 billion to
$14 billion in a liability position. She asked how the
ref erence conpared to the $6 billion of unfunded liability.

M. Burnett responded that rating agencies applied its own
discount rate, and the $6 billion was based on the 8
percent actuarial assuned rate that the retirenent board
was using. He continued that rating agencies each applied
its own rate, and the rate would result in a larger
l[iability than what was produced with 8 percent.

Senat or Bi shop remarked that there was hi storica
background offered, which had included a m scal cul ati on of
the actuarial assunption. He wanted to know what cash was
avai l abl e for the fund.

M. Burnett stated that for purposes of funding, under SB
125 and under the calculation for the enployer rate, POBC
was using 8 percent. [Secretary's note: In FY 08, SB 125
converted the PERS defined-benefit plan to a cost-share
plan, like TRS, and provided for one integrated system of
accounting for all enployers.]

2:52: 54 PM

Senator Dunl eavy asked if the current payoff anmount woul d
be $6 billion.

M. Mtchell stated that today it would take $6 billion to
be placed in the fund to earn 8 percent until it was spent
in the future to satisfy the expected pension benefits that
woul d materialize.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



Senator Dunl eavy asked how much it would be if the full
anmount owed to each individual were calculated and paid
i mredi ately.

M. Mtchell asked if Senator Dunleavy neant to ask for an
anount not assuming any rate of return on the benefits.

Senat or Dunl eavy answered in the affirmative.

M. Mtchell stated that a one percent reduction in the
rate of return pushed the amount from $11 billion to about
$19 billion. He noted that the amobunt was not in present
value, but rather in paynents. He discussed calculations
and concluded that it would require a significant anount of
additional funding if the state were to assune a zero
percent rate of return on the trust.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked if the anpbunt was higher than $19
billion.

M. Mtchell replied that he had used a hypothetical
scenario of only a 1 percent differential, and had only
considered the cash flow Later on in the analysis, the
paynent that was projected with an 8 percent assunption was
about $11 billion. If the rate of return assunption was
reduced to 7 percent, the paynent anmount junped to $19.8
billion.

Co-Chair Kelly asked for clarification on the anpbunts being
di scussed.

M. Burnett stated that the state would have to pay $11
billion to replace the $6 billion if it was not paid now.

M. Mtchell explained that recognition of the unfunded
liability had occurred in the early 2000s. The recognition
resulted in a push by the Miurkowski admnistration [forner
Governor Frank Murkowski] for pension obligation bond
aut hori zation, which was approved by the legislature in
2008.

2:56:39 PM

M. Mtchell discussed the PowerPoint, "Departnment of
Revenue; Presentation to Senate Finance Commttee; Pension

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



bl igation Bond Transaction; Septenber 29, 2016" (copy on
file).

He read from slide 2, "GFOA Pension oligation Bond
Advi sory Bulletin Concerns and POBC Mtigation"

M ght Fail to Earn Bond Interest Rate
eInterest rate is the one variable POB Issuers
can contro
*The lower the rate the higher the expectation of
success over the 23 year life
*The PERS and TRS have an assuned rate of return
of 8% for the prefunding of the pension trusts
*The bond interest rate is expected to be bel ow
4.0% including all costs of issuance

POBs are Conplex Instrunments with Considerable R sk
*The POBC has only authorized fixed rate debt,
t he nost sinple nmeans of issuing bonds
*No derivatives or variable rate products are
al | owed

M. Mtchell stated that there were many reasons not to use
pensi on obligation bonds, and that bonds had been used in
fiscally irresponsible ways. He explicated that it was
possible to take greater savings up front and create bigger
l[iability in the future. He stated that there were ways
that he considered nore and less fiscally responsible to
structure a transaction. He thought what was being proposed
by the admnistration was as fiscally responsible as was
possible if one were to choose to do pension obligation
bonds.

M. Mtchell discussed the GFOA concerns outlined on slide
2. He thought the state had solved the system c issue that
was present in tier 1 of the retirenent plans. He
enphasized that the one thing that was able to be
controlled in a pension obligation bond issuance was the
cost of <capital. He noted that APOBC had approved a
resolution that allowed for an interest rate up to 4.5
percent. If the trust did not receive that rate of return,
it would nmake things worse.

3:00: 02 PM

Vi ce-Chair M cciche asked about M. Mtchell's hypothetica
scenario that included a 1 percent reduction in the rate of

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



return which would bring the $11 billion in liability to
$19 billion. He wondered if the rate conparison had started
with 4 percent or 8 percent.

M. Mtchell replied that the conparison had been nade from
an 8 percent to a 7 percent rate of return. He clarified
that $6 billion was the equivalent of the $11 billion on a
present value basis. He continued that for each percent
that went down, there was a fairly linear relationship. If
the funds were only earning 6 percent, then it would
increase the paynent anount by $8.8 billion. He clarified
that it would not be inpacted by the bonds, which would be
payi ng 4 percent.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered how the risk would be rated for
Al aska.

M. Burnett replied that over the past 30 years that the
pensi on funds had been in play, the funds have earned nore
than 8 percent. He noted that there would be a chart later
in the presentation that would show rolling 20-year
averages every year for the previous several years, and
would reflect a rate of return that was well above 4
percent. He pointed out that the amount of noney in the
pensi on obligation bond issue was very small (with snal
risk) relative to the rest of the noney in the pension
funds (with larger risk), as well as the unfunded anount.
He referred to the systematic underfunding of the systemin
the late 1990s and early 2000s, created by mscal cul ation
of certain actuari es.

Senator Dunleavy queried that if the risk was such, why it
was not recomended that governnment be funded through the
sanme approach

M. Burnett replied that the state had a debt that nust be
paid, and currently the state was paying the debt with an 8
percent interest rate.

3:03:59 PM

Senator Dunl eavy asked if the state was going to incur nore
debt to pay of its debt. M. Burnett replied in the
negative, and clarified that the state would be replacing
one debt [in pension debt] wth another debt.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



Senat or Dunl eavy asked anecdotally if M. Burnett would
recommend that Al askans take a nortgage out on their house
and play the nmarket.

M. Burnett replied in the negative.

Co- Chair MacKinnon stressed that the pension obligation
bonds were a bonding nechanism that was affected by the
federal interest rate, and not necessarily stocks that were
nmoving up and down in the market. She furthered that bonds
could be invested in stocks, but the admnistration was
proposi ng sonmething nore fixed, that was not conpeting
directly with stocks.

M. Burnett explained that the proposal was to borrow noney
at a fixed rate of i nt er est in an international
mar ket pl ace, which would be sold at a fixed interest rate
over a period of 23 years. Proceeds from the bonds woul d be
invested along with the rest of the pension fund, using the
sane asset allocation as the fund board was currently using
to invest.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stressed that the proposal was not the
sanme as purchasing a stock.

M. Burnett stated that a common concern was that often
ti mes when peopl e proposed use of pension obligation bonds,
it was proposed wth a variable rate interest rate, wth
derivatives, etc.; where there was a significant market
risk in how much was required to pay for the bonds. He
confirmed that the admnistration was not pr oposi ng
anything like such an idea, but rather was proposing a
sinple fixed rate security.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the APOBC resolution that
provi ded the paraneters the adm nistrati on was considering,
including the fixed rate and the anount of the pension
obl i gati on bonds.

M. Burnett agreed to provide the information.

3:07: 20 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked about M. Burnett's coments
pertaining to replacing debt. He wondered if M. Burnett
had been referring to trading an 8 percent debt with a 4
percent or | ower debt.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



M. Burnett responded in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Mcciche again referred to the concept of
repl aci ng debt, and asked if M. Burnett had been referring
to up to $3.5 billion versus the $20 billion or so that was
al ready invested.

M. Burnett agreed, and stated that there was already a
huge debt on the pension system

Co-Chair Kelly invited Representative Saddler to ask a
guestion at the table.

Representative Saddler wondered if the $3.5 billion in
pension obligation bond issues would neet 100 percent of
the pension obligation, or iif there was a risk of
overfunding that mght result in increased benefits for
retirees.

M. Mtchell replied that the sizing would depend sonmewhat
on what the market would bear, and it was unknown exactly
how much of the potential authority would be sold. He
furthered that it would be a range of $2.3 billion to $3.3
billion. At the $2.3 billion mark, the corporation would
plan to make a $980 mllion deposit into TRS, which would
fund it to 90 percent. There would be a smaller deposit of
approximately $1.3 billion to PERS that would fund it to
approximately 80 percent. If there was a l|larger transaction
of $2.3 billion in to PERS, the system would be funded to
90 percent. He continued that at 90 percent, there was an
expectation of having sone positive years and not being
over funded in the short term He remarked that a primry
benefit of the PERS transaction was that if the actuarial
assunptions were borne out, it would elimnate the state's
paynment on behalf of the other enployer's paynents.

Co-Chair Kelly asked for Vice-Chair Mcciche to restate his
earlier questions.

Vice-Chair Mcciche announced that that the state was
al ready covering the debt at an 8 percent interest rate
and pondered that M. Burnett was tal king about replacing
the debt wth another debt at an interest rate of 4 percent
or under.

M. Burnett replied in the affirmative.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



Vice-Chair Mcciche reiterated that the state had a simlar

arrangenment with obligation bonds on $20 billion already
i nvested, versus the proposed bonds (up to $3.5 billion) on
t he books.
3:11: 23 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon chal |l enged that |ocal nunicipalities had
an obligation to pay its debt that had been incurred in the
system while the state would be renoving the debt by the
i nvestment. She thought the proposal was a policy decision,
and that the state would clean up all of the pension
liability based on the POB proposal. She agreed that 100
percent of the state's liability rested in the TRS system
She referred to Representative Saddl er's question about the
possibility of overfunding and expanding benefits, and
wondered why the state would put up to $2.5 billion in the
PERS system when the state was not 100 percent responsible
for the system

Co-Chair Kelly invited Representative Thonpson to ask a
guesti on.

Representative Thonpson asked if the state went from
funding 90 percent to 100 percent of its obligation, if it
meant the nmunicipalities involved in the system would
expect rates to go down. Conversely, he wondered if the
rates would go up if the following year there was |ess
f undi ng.

M. Burnett replied that the APOBC, in structuring the
proposal, had been very concerned with going below the 22
percent that nunicipalities currently paid. He relayed that
the group was basing its decisions on a reading of the |aw,
in which the nmunicipalities continued to pay at 22 percent,
and therefore continuing to make paynents into the system
to reduce the unfunded liability. He continued that by
funding to the 90 percent, and to an allowable |evel, the
rate would be about 25 percent if the municipalities were
paying their share of the current paynent (with no paynent
on behal f).

M. Burnett continued, stating that if the pay rate was
left at 22 percent, in the early years the municipalities
would be paying to help with the unfunded liability and
reduci ng the state's exposure.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



3:14:48 PM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon t hought there was pressure on
| egislators through an admnistrative policy to have the
muni ci palities <conme to «cities asking to lower the
contribution rate. She enphasized that the nmnunicipalities
had played a part in getting the state into the position it
was in wth unfunded liability. She pointed out that the
state had put up $3 billion in cash to try and help with
t he problem

M. Burnett agreed, and remarked that the state had done an
incredible job relative to the nmunicipalities. He referred
to discussions with a variety of city attorneys, finance
of ficers, and managers; and universally they had preferred
to leave the 22 percent contribution rate in place rather
than a variable rate in the future. He thought the
continuity of the rate would nmake for a nore stable system
He commented that the current law would allow for the
continuity, but perhaps could be strengthened.

M. Mtchell clarified that if the $2.3 billion was put in
the trust the actuarial analysis would produce an enpl oyer
contribution requirement below 22 percent, and would be
closer to 17 percent or 18 percent. The |law (as revi ewed by
the Department of Law, the legislative attorney, and the
muni ci pal attorney) stated that a 22 percent contribution
rate was not only a floor but a ceiling. Consequently, even
though the actuarially determned rate would drop, the
muni ci palities would still pay 22 percent. He explained the
possible fluctuation of the rate, and stated that by
mai ntaining the 22 percent rate, it was expected that the
rate would never have to go above 22 percent in the future.
He summarized that the nunicipalities would wind up paying
a share of the unfunded liability, whereas with a "rate
hol i day" they woul d not.

3:18: 20 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood, but stressed that if the
admnistration went forward there would be pressure on the
| egislature to reduce the cap from 22 percent because sone
muni cipalities wuld argue they were paying nore than
necessary, even though the state had been paying on behal f
for years.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



M. Mtchell replied that if nunicipalities started asking
for a rate reduction, they would need to be aware that it
woul d create future liability.

Senator Dunleavy referred to previous comments about
investing in the market and interest rates. He asked for
M. Burnett to discuss the investnent of proceeds.

M. Burnett explained that investnment proceeds would be
invested by the Al aska Retirenment Mnagenent (ARM Board

in exactly the same way that it was investing noney for
PERS and TRS.

3:20: 04 PM

Senator Dunleavy asked if the board was investing in the
stock market.

M. Burnett conveyed that the board was investing in the
stock market, private equity real estate, other alternative
i nvestments, and bonds.

Co-Chair Kelly surmised that if the state went to bonding,
the funds went to the ARM board, and were no |[|onger
avai lable to the | egislature.

M. Burnett concurred.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that there was no way to reap any
benefit from the noney (beyond paying pension obligation
debt) if there was difficult financial times in the future.
He di scussed the use of potential savings in the period of
time that paynments to the pension fund went down. He
t hought bonding would put the state in a nore difficult
position in the future unless conditions turned out to be
favor abl e.

M. Burnett thought Co-Chair Kelly had stated things
correctly, but clarified that wunder <current accounting
rules on credit analysis, paynents to the pension funds
were considered like bonds sold to an outside investor. He
continued that if the legislature failed to pay a paynent
of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) to the
pension fund, it would be seen as an extrene credit
negative; simlar to if the state failed to pay the bond
paynents. He stated that the pension obligations had to be
pai d, because it was a contractual item in the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



constitution. He clarified (not as a recomendation) that
defaulting on an obligation to an outside entity was a
better result to the state than not paying the unfunded
liability directly to the pension trust.

3:23:40 PM

Co-Chair Kelly identified that the state had the ability to
pay or reduce paynments to the state assistance in the hope
that it would buy sone tine. He enphasized that if the debt
was turned into a bond paynent, the state would no | onger
have the sane flexibility.

M. Burnett stated that the bond paynent only limted the
ability to reduce state assistance, as it would still have
an extrene credit negative if not paid.

Co-Chair Kelly clarified that he was referring to the
state's ability to pay its bills.

M. Burnett expressed understanding. He stated that the
adm nistration believed that the savings in cash flow nmade
t he transacti on worthwhil e.

M. Mtchell added that Co-Chair Kelly was correct in that
the bonds would Ilimt the state's options, but sone
optionality would be retained. The state would still be
payi ng 22 percent payroll as an enployer, over the required
anount and thereby retaining sone flexibility. The state
would retain a paynent on behalf of paynents in the TRS
system because of the lower floor. He thought Co-Chair
Kelly had nade a valid point, and agreed that the state
would be giving up sone flexibility wunder the bond
scenari o.

Senator Dunl eavy asked about reinvesting proceeds after
selling bonds. He asked for an explanation of what would
happen if there was a one percent return on investnment over
the life of the bond.

M. Mtchell replied that under the scenario, the state
woul d pay nore than it earned.

M. Burnett added that the state would al so be earning one
percent on the rest of the balance in the pension system
so the paynents on behalf would go to an unsustainable
| evel and the system woul d be broken.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



Senat or Dunl eavy asked if the pension obligation bonds were
a ganbl e.

M. Burnett stated that it was a ganble to have a funded
pensi on system and assune that it will have enough fundi ng.

Senator Dunleavy asked if it was a ganble to predict what
the stock market would do on the follow ng day.

M. Burnett answered in the affirmati ve.

3:26:47 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon referred to when the adm nistration was
considering restructuring the permanent fund, and relayed
that the legislature had reviewed rates of return. She
t hought 8 percent, prospectively, was too high according to
financial markets and credit rating agencies. She thought
that there could be a difference of $8 billion on a 1
percent assunption. She referred to the 20-year rate
retrospective that was nentioned earlier, and acknow edged
that there had been rates above 8 percent. She referred to
Senator Dunleavy's earlier coments about a zero percent
interest rate in Japan, and wondered when it would be
possi ble to observe real rates of return.

M. Burnett stated that the actuarial assunption was a
rolling 20 year experience, and the admnistration had
provided a 7 percent scenario for the comittee to
consider. He continued that the ARM board reviewed the
actuarial rate of return on a four-year basis, and the
following year the rate would be reviewed. \Wen the review
was done, the rate could be different than 8 percent. He
was not sure of the outcome, and recalled that at the |ast
review, the rate was left at 8 percent. The actuary had
done a lot of analysis, and the state's financial advisor
(Callan Associates) had considered the rate to be within a
reasonabl e range. He thought the average rate for public
pensions in the United States was around 7.5 percent.

M. Burnett continued, and relayed that he had seen the
anal ysis of the Permanent Fund Protection Act, and thought
that rates in the range of 6.9 to 7.25 had been exan ned.
He relayed that Callan Associates had cal cul ated that two-
thirds of time, the pension fund would produce sonewhere
between a mnus 4 percent and a 20 percent return in the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



next year. He relayed that there was a new asset allocation
and analysis every year. He continued that the rate could
be less than 8 percent in the future. If the rate was 7
percent, the cash flow under the current plan would equate
to another $8.8 billion over the next 23 years, to anortize
the unfunded liability. If the state sold pension bonds, it
woul d reduce the $8.8 billion by about $1.5 billion.

3:31: 36 PM

Co-Chair Kelly invited Representative Saddler to ask a
guesti on.

Representative Saddler discussed the investnent principal
of not trying to time the market. He wondered if there was
a way to aneliorate the cost by having a slower pace of
i nvestnment or dollar cost averaging.

M. Burnett stated that there were a nunber of nethods to
consider, and was not sure what the ARM board woul d choose
to do. He assunmed that the ARM board chief investnent
officer Gary Bader had |ooked at all possibilities as to
the decision to put the funds into the current asset
allocation, or to "bleed the funds in" over a period of
tine. He confirmed that the decision would be nade as a
policy matter by the ARM board and staff.

M. Mtchell furthered that it would take quite a while to
put $3 billion to work, even if one wanted to put it in
ri ght away.

Senator Bishop queried as to how many other states had al so
made a pension obligation bond transaction, and w th what
results.

STEVE KANTOR, FI NANCI AL ADVI SOR, HI LLTOP SECURITIES, stated
that there had been several other states that had conpl eted
a simlar type of transaction, and the transaction being
proposed was "uniquely Alaskan.” He opined that the
proposal had different aspects to it that made it both nore
conservative, and also a little bit safer than sone of the
other transactions. He discussed a recent |arge transaction
done by the State of Kansas; and nmentioned that additiona
simlar transactions had taken place in the states of New
Jersey, Illinois, and Oregon.

3:33:26 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the state would be penalized if
there were | ower than expected rates of return in the early
year.

M. Kantor replied that, evaluating the transaction over
the 23-year period, it was |ess advantageous to have | ower
interest rates in the beginning than the end. The nore the
state earned up front, the nore it could use to build the
fund up. He thought the transaction could wthstand | ower
interest rates in the beginning because the state had the
ability to continue to earn rates over tine, and it was an
average cal cul ation rather than a one-year cal cul ation.

Co- Chai r Kelly remarked that he had gleaned from
presentations regarding pension unfunded liability that it
was alnost inpossible to recover from failed initial
i nvest ments. He thought Co-Chair MacKinnon had wvalid
concerns and remarked that sonme of the inpacts on the fund
wer e not reparable.

Senator Dunleavy referred to passage of the bill that
aut hori zed pension obligation bonds in 2008, and the anount
of tinme needed to recover from negative financial inpacts.

RANDALL HOFFBECK, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
noted that the rolling 20-year average incorporated the
"mel tdown" Senator Dunleavy nentioned, as well as the
.dotcom financial crisis, and rates of return were still in
the 7 percent range.

Co-Chair Kelly asked for clarification.

Comm ssi oner Hof f beck repeated that he was discussing a 20
year average of rates of return.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expressed concern with the possibility
that the market was currently in a bubble and while it was
advant ageous to sell, it was not currently advantageous to
buy st ock.

M. Kantor stated that there was a |lot of conjecture as to
what woul d happen. He pointed out that there was a point at
which the stock market had risen unexpectedly and defied
expectations. He nentioned market wunpredictability, and
enphasi zed the focus on the long termin the context of the
proposed POB transacti on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



3:37:46 PM
AT EASE

3:42: 25 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Kelly wanted to advance through the slides of the
presentation, and asked mnenbers to hold questions until
later in the neeting.

Comm ssi oner Hof fbeck stated that he wanted to focus on two
slides. He thought the first slide addressed nmany of the
concerns that had been expressed about pension obligation
bonds, and would discuss why the administration's proposa
was different than sonme of the objections maintained. He
conveyed that the last slide would show rel evant nunbers.

3:43:38 PM

M. Mtchell returned to slide 2, "GFOA Pension bligation
Bond Advisory Bulletin - Concerns and POBC Mtigation"

Potentially Uses Debt Capacity
*Wth inplenentation of GASB 68 the portion of
t he unf unded actuarially assumed pensi on
l[iability in PERS and TRS annual paynent that is
funded by the State has been added to the State’s
bal ance sheet as a debt

*The ~concept of soft liability versus hard
l[iability is no | onger viable

*The POBC issue wll repl aces the existing
[iability

POBS may Defer Principal Paynent or Extend Repaynent
*The POB paynents are based on the |[atest

actuari al anal ysi s Wi th no ext ensi on of
anortization
* Annual paynents will be level after a 2-4 year

ranp up period, creating budget stability and
pushi ng savings into the future

*All annual paynents are tailored to be |less than
the current actuarial analysis projects

Rati ng Agencies May View POBs Negatively

*The POBC has structured t he bonds as
conservatively as possible

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



*The POBC transaction is expected to be neutral
to positive for the State’s rating

M. Mtchell noted that the admnistration had tried to
mtigate the negative view of pension obligation bonds by
avoiding the first four points on the slide. He enphasized
that the admnistration had tried to structure the bond
proposal as fiscally responsible as possible to avoid any
potential for a negative rating viewpoint. He discussed the
vi ewpoint of rating agencies, which considered unfunded
pension liabilities to be the sane as any ot her debt.

M. Mtchell turned to slide 7, "Cash Flow Benefit — Rate
of Return Sensitivity." He noted that the followng two
slides would show nodelling of the base case scenario as
wel |l as the maxi mum case scenario as a conparison of the
potential state paynent after a transaction with an 8

percent return. The base case scenario was at $2.3 billion
total principal anortization; and the nax case was at $3.3
billion, which would constitute the full 90 percent of

funding in both TRS and PRS.

M. Mtchell continued discussing slide 7, and noted that
the principal anortization colum reflected the paynents
the state would be making as of today. He pointed out that
the potential cash flow benefit at the 8 percent return
level on the max case scenario generated just under $3
billion of cash flow relief. He continued that in FY 18,
there would be a $50 mllion reduction, in part due to a
m smatch between the budgetary expectation and the |atest
actuarial analysis that had not yet been transferred to the
Ofice of Managenent and Budget or the Division of
Legislative Finance. He continued that in FY 19, the
benefit dropped to approximately $1.6 mllion and then grew
to $404 mllion in FY 39. He suggested that the table
illustrated budget stabilization rather than a short-term
benefit.

3:47: 09 PM

M. Mtchell drew attention to the "Potential Cash Flow
Benefit - 7 percent Return" colum on the far right of
slide 7. He noted that the 7 percent return dimnished the
total budgetary relief to $1.8 billion. He stated that the
adm nistration would pursue the transaction. He reiterated
that there were additional slides to provide backup, and

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



t hought conparing slide 8 and slide 9 was particularly
useful .

M. Mtchell |ooked at slide 8, "State Paynent Breakdown (8
percent Return)." He drew attention to the total of $11
mllion at the top of the 'Existing State Assistance
Paynment' columm of the left hand table. He conpared it to
the $19 billion total of the '7 percent Return State
Assi stance Paynment' colum on slide 9; and conpared the
"Cash Flow Benefit' columm totals of the two slides. He
t hought the benefit of the proposed transaction was
apparent. He pointed out savings in FY 39.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if M. Mtchell had run nunbers on a 6
percent return scenari o.

M. Mtchell answered in the negative. He elaborated that
t he anal yst that had worked on the nunbers being presented
had indicated that the results were fairly linear, and
therefore it was possible to estimate a 6 percent rate of
return based on the existing information.

3:49:45 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that financial liability was
al ways a risk. He understood that anything above the rate
of the issuance of the bond was a benefit to the state.

M. Mtchell agreed that there would be a benefit; and it
would be the difference between the 4 percent cost of
capital (that the state would still be paying), and the
4.15 annualized rate of return that the state would earn on
t he invested assets.

Vice-Chair Mcciche queried the odds that selling bonds
woul d not reduce the existing 8 percent level of liability
risk.

M. M tchel | stated that hi stori cal 20-year rolling
averages would indicate a statistically near 100 percent
i kelihood of success. He added that there was always a
risk in historical perfornmance.

3:51: 23 PM

Representative Saddler referred the charts on slide 8 and
slide 9, and asked about the state's retirenent obligation.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



M. Mtchell clarified that the nunbers in the "Existing
State Asst. Paynent"” columm reflected the portion the state
paid on behalf of the enployers (including the state). He
clarified that the figures were not representative of the
22 percent of payroll that the state (and other enployers)
paid as an enpl oyer.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon asked if the admnistration had
structured a direct cash paynent in order to look at the
cost savings.

M. Burnett stated that the paynent depended upon the
source of funds. He continued that the adm nistration was
not aware of a source of funds that was not going to be
needed for budgetary purposes for other reasons, that was
avai l able and not earning nore than 4 percent. He thought
the only source of funds that was not necessary to use was
taking noney from the permanent fund earnings reserve
beyond what would otherwise be taken out. He thought a
cash-to-cash analysis would work if the state had a |arge
bal ance soneplace in a fund that was not invested |ong
term

Senator Dunl eavy pointed out that although the departnent
was noving ahead with its plans and was authorized by |aw,
the legislature was under no obligation to fund the bonds
being considered. He wondered if the adm nistration would
nove forward if there were not enough legislators
supportive of appropriating the funding.

Comm ssi oner Hof fbeck hoped the legislature would support
the action, and thought it was a good business decision to
make. He furthered that the reason the topic had conme back
up was due to the fact that the cost of debt had dropped so
far. He enphasized that the pension obligation was
constitutionally required to be paid; and thought the
pertinent question was whether the state wanted to pay the
debt at 8 percent, or at 4 percent. He opined that there
was an opportunity to reduce long-term costs, and the state
shoul d take it.

3:55:10 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy discussed balancing risk. He discussed a
prediction that interest rates would maintain or drop, and
wondered if the situation was tinme sensitive or if the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



state could wait to have a larger discussion to include
nore nenbers. He commented that the transaction involved a
| arge sum of noney, there were no guarantees, and there
were inherent risks. He reiterated his question to ask if
the admnistration would go forward with the proposal if
there was |imted support.

Comm ssi oner Hof f beck expressed concern that w thout
support, failing to nove forward with the bonds would raise
the cost of the debt. He thought if there was verbal non-
support from the legislature (which put concerns in the
mar ket on the appropriation), it would increase the cost of
the bond issuance and cost the state noney. He indicated
that the issue of legislative support would be wei ghed when
the administration was naking the decision to nove forward
with the proposal. He stipulated that if the departnent
could not get a good deal for the state, it would not nove
forward

Senator Dunleavy communicated that the |legislature was
under an obligation to ask as many questions as possible
He thought that if the questions raised the rates, it would
be the concern of the adm nistration.

Comm ssi oner Hoffbeck clarified that he had stated that in
noving forward, the departnent would need to consider the
i npact |egislative support would have on the cost of the
bond i ssuance.

Co-Chair Kelly thought it was inportant to state that the
conmmittee was on the record, even if it was not acting on
legislation at the nonent. He recommended that the
adm nistration take tinme to work through the issue with the
| egislature so that it did not mstakenly say anything on
the record that could possibly inpact the state's bond
record.

Conmi ssioner Hoffbeck shared a concern that when the
admnistration had originally considered the pension
obl i gati on bonds over the previous sunmer, rates had been
approximately 3.5 percent; and current rates had risen to
3.8 percent. He thought there was indications that the
mar ket was starting to rise.

3:59: 37 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



Co-Chair Kelly asked about slide 10, "Financing Schedule,™
and wondered why marketing in the United States was on the
schedul e after marketing in Asia and Europe. He wondered if
there was anything in particular to know about the tine
frame listed on the slide.

Comm ssi oner Hof fbeck answered in the negative, and rel ayed
that the admnistration had realized that it was necessary
to increase the nunber of investors that purchased State of
Al aska bonds. He continued that the admnistration's goa
was to secure up to 100 new investors. He stated that it
was nore convenient to go through the United States toward
the end of the financing schedul e.

Vice-Chair Mcciche Ilooked at the principle of $3.5
billion, and wondered why there was an 8 percent interest
rate. He wondered if the adm nistration had investigated a
lower fixed interest rate that presented sonme savings to
the state but at a lower level of risk than going out for
bondi ng.

M . M tchel | asked if Vice-Chair Mcciche had Dbeen
referring to the actuarial rate of return of 8 percent, and
wondering why the admnistration did not have a |ower
target rate.

Vice-Chair Mcciche answered in the affirmati ve.

M. Mtchell expanded that the actuarial rate had nost
recently been 8.25 percent and had dimnished to 8 percent.
He continued that if the actuarial assunption was
decreased, it would increase the unfunded Iliability. He
referred back to the differing state assistance paynent
anounts as reflected on slides 8 and 9, which had changed
with a 1 percent reduction in the assunption of a rate of
return.

4:02: 26 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche recalled that M. Mtchell had stated
that the difference was |inear, and pondered that a 6
percent rate of return could add another $8 billion to the

state assi stance paynent.
Conmmi ssi oner Hoffbeck discussed the risk involved in the

proposed transaction; and suggested that if the bonds were
sold at a 4 percent return, the state could only achieve a

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 22 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



3.75 percent rate of return over the twenty year period
bei ng exam ned. He asserted that the resultant loss of a
quarter of a percent could be considered a rounding error
conpared the larger issue of funding the pension fund if
the state only achieved a 3.75 rate of return.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the aforenentioned 23-year tine
period was an expected plan closure date. She inquired if
the admnistration was engaging in due diligence by
providing the credit rating agencies an opportunity to
question the admnistration about the proposal and prevent
anot her downgrade in the state's credit rating.

M. Mt chell conveyed that neetings wth the credit
agencies had already occurred, and the admnistration
expected to have feedback from the agencies the foll ow ng
day or early in the subsequent week.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if M. Mtchell would be notifying
the Finance Conm ttees upon receiving the feedback.

M. Mtchell explained that if the credit agencies did not
view the proposed transaction as the administration
suspected, it would have to reevaluate the proposal. He
furthered that the adm nistration expected the proposal was
subject to an appropriation pledge; and used the Anchorage

jail, the Goose Creek Correctional Center, and the Al aska
Native Tribal Health Consortium (ANTHC) housing facility as
exanples. The facilities listed had all been subject to

appropriation commtnents of the state; wunder which the
state annually commtted to appropriate noney.

4:05:16 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon clarified that the transactions being
consi dered were taxable.

M. Mtchell answered in the affirmati ve.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon nentioned reading about cities that had
taken on pension obligation bonds, gone bankrupt, and had
|ater regretted decisions related to pension obligation
bonds and poor initial returns.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the inpacts on the other states,

and wondered how the nonetary anount of the proposed
transaction conpared to those in other states. She renmarked

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 23 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



that American pension systens were in trouble, and thought
it was fascinating that the State of Illinois was issuing
pension obligation bonds when it could not nake pension
paynents. She wondered if there were other states or cities
t hat had been successful over a long period of tinme in the
same scenario that was being contenplated by the
adm ni stration.

STEVE KANTOR, FI NANCI AL ADVI SOR, FIRST SOUTHWEST; FI NANCI AL

ADVI SOR, PENSI ON OBLI GATI ON BOND CORPORATI ON,
conmmuni cated that the transaction was sized to be "uniquely
Al askan.” He elaborated that +there had been pension

obligation bonds that had been larger, and pension bonds
that had been smaller; and due to the econom es of scale,
the goal was to maintain 90 percent funding. He was
confident that the state could sell nore bonds if needed
He thought cities such as Detroit, M chigan; and Stockton
California had structured their bond deals to get all of
the potential savings up front in a way that had magnified
the problem when things did not go as planned. He thought
there was a responsible way to structure the transaction.

M. Kantor continued, suggesting that the State of Al aska
had taken the opposite approach to that of t he
aforenentioned cities. He reported that a rating agency had
expressed that it had never seen a pension bond structured
as conservatively. He enphasized that the proposed
transaction had been structured to nmaximze the benefit to
the state, while mnimzing the risk.

4:09: 05 PM

Co-Chair Kelly invited Representative Saddler to conment.

Representative Saddler nentioned the effect of wvarious
financial activities on the state's bond rating. He asked
to what extent the issuance of the $3.5 billion would
affect the state's bond rating for general obligation bonds
and debt capacity.

M. Mtchell explained that there would be sone inpact on
debt capacity, but explained that state already had the
obligation on its balance sheet. He considered that it was
a matter of the rating agencies followng through wth
rhetoric regarding how the agencies analyzed pension
obligations that were on one's balance sheet. He opined
that it would be difficult for the agencies to penalize the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 24 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



state for refinancing an existing obligation in a
responsi bl e fashi on.

M. Mt chel | cont i nued, nmentioning the size of the
transaction and the state's outstanding $800 million in
general obligation debt. He discussed issuing $3 billion

subject to appropriation obligation to the State of Al aska
through a public corporation. He explained that the APOBC
woul d have feedback on the subject later in the week, and
reiterated that if the group received unexpected feedback
it was likely the transaction would have to be put on hold.
He di scussed different rating levels, and how the state not
bei ng downgraded from an "AA" rating category would cause
the cost of capital to go up.

Representative Saddler comented that he had attended a
meeting with Comonwealth North, at which the Alaska's
Liquid Natural Gas (AKLNG project was discussed. He
wondered if there would be any possible advantage to the
state to gaining the bond issue with anything else that
mght have to do wth financing of the natural gas
pi pel i ne.

M. Kantor disclosed that he was al so the financial advisor
to the state for the AKLNG project for the Departnent of
Revenue. He noted that one potential advant age was
introducing the State of Alaska and the appropriation
credit to a nuch broader base of international investors.
He pondered that the funding anounts being discussed for
t he AKLNG project were quite significant, and would require
additional investors to be able to invest in the project.
He thought that by getting parties confortable with the
state and being able to tell the story of the state's
credit, the proposed transaction could snooth the way for
goi ng ahead with marketing for the AKLNG project.

Representative Saddler clarified that M. Kantor was
referring to financing in the context of the state's
reput ation.

M. Kantor answered in the affirmati ve.

4:12:52 PM
AT EASE

4:18:10 PM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 25 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



STEPHEN GAUTHI ER, GOVERNMENT FI NANCE OFFI CERS ASSCClI ATI ON
(via teleconference), relayed that he had been asked to
explain the policy position that the Governnent Finance
Oficers Association (GFOA) had taken. He explained that
GFOA was the professional association of finance officers
in the United States and Canada, and had about 18, 000
menbers from all states and nost |ocal governments. He
thought it was understandable why pension obligation bonds
were attractive, and acknowl edged the opportunity for
earnings and budget relief through the transaction. He
continued and stated that GFOA had taken a position against
pensi on obligation bonds as an association was that the
bonds frequently fail. He furthered that until 2009, nost
pension obligation bonds fail ed. He qualified that
currently there were nore successful such bond ventures
than not, although the endeavor was still risky. He added
that pension obligation bonds often attracted governments
that were in the | east position to take such ri sks.

M. Gauthier continued discussing GFOA's position on
pensi on obligation bonds, and highlighted reasons for the
advisory bulletin referenced by M. Burnett. He discussed
borrowing noney and reinvesting at a higher rate of
interest; and pointed out the long-term nature of bonds. He
enphasi zed that relying on a guarantee of investing at the
sane rate was problematic over tinme. He referred to the
variable nature of markets. He asserted that there were
conplications in reinvesting refinancing. He explained that
very often it was possible to get nonies but there were
factors that would affect how it could be reinvested.

M. Gauthier relayed that often pension obligation bond
financial arrangenents involved underlying factors such as
swaps and derivatives, which carried nore risk than was
usually imagined. He discussed conplications wth debt
managenment, noting that pension obligation bonds | owered
legal debt nmargin by taking accounting Iliability and
turning it into an actual debt obligation. He continued
that with taxable bonds there was (unlike regular tax-
exenpt bonds) often no call provision. He nentioned that
sonetimes GFOA had observed pension obligation bond
arrangenents would frequently backload principal paynents,
and often over a longer period than the anortization would
have been for the underlying unfunded obligation.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 26 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



M. Gaut hi er di scussed possi bl e political i ssues
(especially in states with strong unions); and had found
that when pensions |ooked better, people |ooked for
increases in benefits. He used the exanple of the Cty of
Detroit, which had also used pension obligation bonds. He
found it ironic that on the surface pension prograns [after
pensi on obligation bonds] |ooked healthy, because the debt
had been noved el sewhere. He concluded that pension bonds
did not solve the pension problem for rating agencies,
which were fundanentally |looking for a conprehensive
solution to include funding policies and other details. He
nmenti oned rating agencies' concern about a |long-term plan

He summarized that it was possible that the proposed
transaction would be successful, but that it was the
position of GFOA that the risks of pension obligation bonds
typically outwei ghed the benefits on nbst occasi ons.

4:23:01 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if M. Gauthier was present
when the administration showed a slide that indicated the
structure of its proposal was nuch different than other
pensi on obligation bond transactions; in the sense that the
proposal was not taking up-front savings and there was
fixed liability.

M. Gauthier indicated that he had not heard the conmments
related to the slide. He stated that theoretically the risk
was that noney would be |ost after not being able to invest
at a higher rate than the debt. He was not sure how to
guar antee having the appropriate rate of return.

Co-Chair MacKinnon agreed that the state could not
guarantee the rate of return, but wanted to know if M.
Gaut hier had considered the administration's position that
the state had a closed plan with a fixed liability.

M. Gauthier acknowl edged that a closed plan did change
sone things, and could be considered "less of a noving
target." He was not sure of the plan details and was
hesitant to conment on it.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that from the admnistration's
per spective, t he pr oposed transaction was nor e
conprehensive than other cities or pension plans that had
consi dered pension obligation bonds. She continued that the
transaction being considered was fixed for a tinme franme of

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 27 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



23 years, and although the state had a little nore contro
of variables, the rate of return could not be guaranteed.

M. Gauthier sunmarized that the rate of borrowing was
al ways fixed, but if for any reason the market changed and
it was not possible to invest at a higher rate, the state
woul d | ose noney.

4:25:35 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche characterized M. Gauthier's comments
as blunt and not necessarily quantified. He asked if the
comments were weighed against the 8 percent that the state
was currently paying in interest. He asked about the
factors influencing the failure of pension obligation bond
endeavors in earlier years.

M. Gauthier reiterated that he was not aware of any
details pertaining to the proposed transaction, but rather
had been asked for a general reconmmendation from GFOA on
the use of pension obligation bonds. He stated that the
bonds were only as good as the assurance that the purchaser
would not be stuck with a higher interest rate on the
bonds. He reminded the commttee that the bonds, because
they were taxable, were over a longer term than nunicipa
or callable bonds. He thought the question of whether to
nove forward wth the bonds could be reduced to a
prudential judgenent of whether the state was satisfied
with the bond earnings projection.

Vice-Chair Mcciche thought there had been factors present
in other pension obligation bond transactions that had
caused earlier failures. He noted that M. Gauthier had
stated that the market had inproved in recent years. He
understood that there was differences in various market
factors, but thought M. Gauthier's statements had been
nore based on the risk of the earlier years than current
conditions. He inquired as to what conditions that resulted
in nore failures in earlier years.

M. Gauthier referred to dramatic changes in the market in
2008, and referred to a nunber highs and lows in the market
in the years preceding 2008. He reiterated that wth
pensi on obligation bonds, the state would be borrow ng and
reinvesting for a long period of tinme, and therefore
everything was dependent on the market performance. He
referred to a quantitative research study from Boston

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 28 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



College. He reiterated that it was not possible to have
guarantees for investing at a higher rate over a long term

4:29:41 PM

MARK FOSTER, FI SCAL STUDY GROUP MEMBER, COMMONWEALTH NORTH,
shared that he was retired, and was very interested in the
proposed POB transaction. He was fornerly the chief
financial officer of Anchorage School District, and had a
fair amount of exposure to the Governnmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) and pension accounting. He had
devel oped sone background information on the proposal for
Commonweal th North, and wanted to share information about
the returns that had been generated by pension obligation
bonds by other states or nunicipalities.

M. Foster discussed pension obligation bonds, noting that
other entities had enjoyed good returns for certain periods
of time, but that had beconme negative in other years. He
referred to a table entitled "Pension Funding Ratios by
State” from the Boston College Center for Retirenent
Research (copy on file), and highlighted data on pension
bonds issued by other states. He referred to data that
i ndi cated the bonds began to look like good investnents in
recent years, where there was increased liquidity that
hel ped to push asset prices up.

4:33: 08 PM

M. Foster discussed historical net returns on pension
obligation bonds, and a period of tinme when there was
gqualitative easing. He cautioned against using the
information as a basis for decision nmaking. He encouraged
the admnistration and comrittee to review economc

literature looking at "headwind" in the econonmy that had
the potential to dimnish the returns relative to the
historic records. Addi tionally, he cautioned against

| ooking to the past to estimte what future returns would
be. He pointed out economc headw nds such as an aging
popul ation and the associated costs. He reported that many
records suggested |low growh and slow growh returns would
drop bel ow 5 percent.

M. Foster continued, and thought there was clearly anxiety
about whether the bonds mght have the potential to
increase the interest rate and cost of financing beyond
just the pension. He considered it could have an inpact on

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 29 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



state and local financing for other capital infrastructure.
He continued that if it was possible to get a favorable
determ nation, it would be great; but if not, he considered
t hat t he bonds coul d have significant risk to
infrastructure going forward.

4:37:04 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked what M. Foster thought of the idea
of issuing over $3 billion in pension obligation bonds.

M. Foster stated that if the risk could be dimnished,
Wi th assurances that there would not be a negative inpact
on other debt costs (state or local); he thought the bonds
were "a decent bet." He relayed that he was conservative in
his projections, and thought the earnings should be
estimated in the 5 percent range rather than 7 percent or 8
percent .

Senator Dunleavy inquired what would happen iif the
adm ni stration noved forward with the transaction wthout a
guarantee that the legislature would appropriate the funds.
He wondered how the appropriation would be structured;
whether it would go in the supplenental budget, in the
appropriation bill, or as a stand-alone item He conveyed
that he was in the position of needing to be convinced that
the proposed transaction was a good idea. He was unsure
about the need for quick action, and he was not sure how
many good outcones had cone from noving quickly on an item
of such magnitude. He expressed skepticism about the
pr oposal .

Senator Kelly invited Representative Vasquez to comrent.

Representati ve Vasquez referred to slide 8 and slide 9 [of
t he PowerPoint presentation given by M. Mtchell], and
remar ked that the projected scenarios using a 7 percent and
8 percent rate of return did not seemrealistic. She would
have |iked to have seen projections using 6 percent, 5
percent, and even a 4 percent rate of return. She discussed
the cost of bond issuance and thought there should be nore
information on the matter. She noted that there was no
historic perspective being presented on the returns the
corporation had gained in its investnents.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 30 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



Co-Chair Kelly asked that the adnmnistration respond to
Representative Vasquez, as well as the Co-Chairs of House
Finance, with the informati on she request ed.

4:41: 33 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche thanked M. Foster for his testinony,
whi ch he thought encapsulated the periods of growh and
negative returns from 1992 to 2009. He referred to a
docunent provided by the director of the Legislative
Fi nance Division. The docunent had shown that in order to
have negative returns over a 25 vyear period, it was
necessary to stack the period of negative returns. He
referred to discussion and testing of another investnent
option earlier in the year, which had found that the
st acki ng had never occurr ed. He request ed t he
adm nistration to respond to the other testifiers in the
neeti ng and consi der the presentations that had been nade.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed with Senator M cciche and requested
that the adm nistration respond to the other presentations.
He t hought there were sonme unanswered questions to address.

Co- Chai r Thonpson asked t hat responses from the
adm ni stration be shared with the House Finance Commttee.

Co- Chair Kelly agreed.
#

ADJ QURNIVENT
4:43: 25 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:43 p.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 31 09/29/16 2:40 P. M



